
 

 

 
 

 
 

Licensing Committee 
Agenda 
 

 
Wyre Borough Council 

Date of Publication: 25 August 2021 
Please ask for : Daphne Courtenage 

Assistant Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01253 887476 

 

Licensing Committee meeting on Thursday, 2 September 2021 at 6.00 
pm at Marine Hall, Fleetwood 
 

1.   Election of Chairman 
 

 

2.   Election of Vice Chairman 
 

 

3.   Apologies 
 

 

4.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 Members will disclose any pecuniary and any other significant interests 
they may have in relation to the matters under consideration. 
 

 

5.   Confirmation of minutes 
 

(Pages 3 - 28) 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Licensing Committee held on 29 April 2021. 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Licensing Sub-Committee held on 03 June 2021 (members of the Sub-
Committee only). 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Licensing Sub-Committee held on 13 July 2021 (members of the Sub-
Committee only). 
 

 

6.   Application for a new Premises License - The Linden Tree Tea 
Room, 31 Linden Ave, Thornton Cleveleys, FY5 2EZ 
 

(Pages 29 - 
100) 

 Report of the Corporate Director Environment. 
 

 

7.   Mobile Homes - Fit and Proper Person Application Fees 
 

(Pages 101 - 
108) 

 Report of the Corporate Director Environment. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 



 
 

Licensing Committee Minutes  

 
The minutes of the Licensing Committee meeting of Wyre Borough Council held on 
Thursday, 29 April 2021 - Virtual Meeting via Webex. 
 

 
Licensing Committee members present: 
Councillors Robinson, Armstrong, Sir R Atkins, Baxter, C Birch, Collinson, George, 
Leech, Smith, S Turner and Matthew Vincent 
 
Apologies for absence: 
Councillors Cartridge, A Turner and Williams 
 
Officers present: 
Niky Barrett, Senior Licensing Officer 
Mary Grimshaw, Legal Services Manager and Deputy Monitoring Officer 
Marianne Unwin, Democratic Services Officer 
 

 
5 Declarations of Interest  

 
None. 
 

6 Confirmation of minutes  
 
The committee confirmed the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing 
Committee held on 25 February 2021 as a correct record. 
 

7 Exclusion of the public and press  
 
In accordance with Paragraph 11 of the Access to Information Rules in Part 4 
of the Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive had determined that the 
report submitted under item 5 of this agenda was “Not for Publication” 
because it contains “exempt information”, as defined in Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 
  
The Committee passed the following resolution: 
  
“That the public and press be excluded from the meeting whilst agenda item 5 
is being considered, as it refers to exempt information as defined in category 
1 (information relating to any individual) of Part 1 of Schedule 12(a) of the 
Local Government Act, 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Variation Order 2006 and, that the public interest in 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 

maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information”. 
 

8 New applicant for a Wyre dual driver's licence with recent convictions  
 
The Corporate Director Environment submitted a report to provide members 
of the Licensing Committee with information to assist them at the hearing. 
  
The applicant was not present at the meeting and the committee took the 
decision to proceed with the hearing in his absence. 
  
The Senior Licensing Officer introduced the report. 
   
Members of the committee discussed the application and Mrs Barrett 
responded to pertinent questioning from members. The committee members 
then considered the decision in a closed session. 
  
In reaching its decision, the committee took account of  
 

 Sections 51(1)(a), 53(1)(a),(b) and 59(1)(a) of Part ll of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  

 

 the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy on Convictions 
and other relevant matters.  
 

Decision 
 
The committee resolved to REFUSE the application for a three year dual 
drivers licence. 
  
Reasons for the decision 
  
The Committee was not satisfied that the applicant was a fit and proper 
person to hold such a licence. 
 

The meeting started at 6.02 pm and finished at 6.18 pm. 
 
Date of Publication: 5 May 2021 
 

Page 4



 
 

Licensing Sub Committee Minutes  

 
The minutes of the Licensing Sub Committee meeting of Wyre Borough Council held on 
Thursday, 3 June 2021 at the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Poulton-le-Fylde. 
 

 
Licensing Committee members present: 
Councillors Baxter, George and A Turner 
 
Apologies for absence: 
None 
 
Other councillors present: 
Councillors Lynne Bowen 
 
Officers present: 
Carmel White, Solicitor 
Mandy Seddon, Manager of Food Health and Safety and Licensing 
Nick Clayton, Environmental Health Officer 
Duncan Jowitt, Democratic Services Officer 
Peter Foulsham, Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager 
 
Four members of the public or press attended the meeting. 
 

 
9 Election of Chairman for this Meeting  

 
Councillor Ann Turner was elected as Chairman of the Sub-Committee. 
 

10 Declarations of Interest  
 
None. 
 

11 Application for a new Premises Licence - Valiants Farm, Lancaster 
Road, Out Rawcliffe, PR3 6BL  
 
The Corporate Director Environment submitted a report to provide members 
of the Licensing Sub-Committee with information to assist them at a hearing 
to determine an application submitted under section 17 of the Licensing Act 
2003 by E A Wallace Ltd for a new premises licence in respect of Valiants 
Farm, Lancaster Road, Out Rawcliffe, PR3 6BL. 
   
The application as submitted was for the applicant to be authorised to provide 

Page 5



 

the following licensable activities: 

 Sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises, between 
10:00 and 23:00, Sunday to Wednesday and between 10:00 and 
01:00, Thursday to Saturday and on Christmas Eve, Boxing Day, New 
Year’s Eve and each Sunday preceding a Bank Holiday Monday.  

 Live and recorded amplified music (indoors) between 10:00 and 23:00, 
Sunday to Wednesday and between 10:00 and 01:00, Thursday to 
Saturday and on Christmas Eve, Boxing Day, New Year’s Eve and all 
Sundays preceding a Bank Holiday Monday. 

 Provision of Late Night Refreshment (indoors) between the relevant 
hours of 23:00 and 00:00, Sunday to Wednesday, and 23:00 and 
01:00, Thursday to Saturday. 

 Plays, films, performances of dance, performances similar to live or 
recorded music, indoor sporting events, boxing or wrestling between 
10:00 and 23:00 Sunday to Wednesday and between 10:00 and 00:00 
Thursday to Saturday. 

 The applicant also wished to be able to open to the public between 
10:00 and 23:30, Sunday to Wednesday and between 10:00 and 
01:30, Thursday to Saturday and on Christmas Eve, Boxing Day, New 
Year’s Eve and all Sundays preceding a Bank Holiday Monday 

The matter was before the Sub-Committee because there were 17 
objections to the application, relating primarily to public nuisance arising from 
antisocial behaviour, disturbance to local residents, noise pollution, littering 
and issues of public safety resulting from excess traffic in the area.  
 
One objector had sent apologies. The Committee considered that it was 
appropriate to proceed in that person’s absence.  It was satisfied that those 
who had made representations but did not attend had been given appropriate 
notice of the hearing as required by Regulations 6 and 7 of The Licensing Act 
2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 and that there had been no other response 
thereto from any non-attending member of the public. The Committee noted 
that members of the public and a Parish Council representative were present 
and that it had before them the representations made. Having considered 
whether it was necessary to adjourn the hearing in the public interest decided, 
having regard to all the circumstances that it was appropriate to proceed. 
Of the responsible authorities, the Fire Authority had made no objection to the 
application. Following meetings with the Police and Environmental Health 
Officers during the consultation period, the Edgar Wallace on behalf of E.A. 
Wallace Limited (the “Applicant”) had agreed to a number of conditions which 
were to be included in the operating schedule if the licence was granted.  
  
The Applicant’s representatives were present in support of the application and 
its expert representative, Karl Barry spoke on its behalf stating that although 
the representations showed a strong depth of feeling, they did not constitute 
grounds to refuse the application as they were outside the scope of the 
Licensing Act. He confirmed that all activities were to take place indoors. He 
said that the Applicant was agreeable that there should be no more than 12 

Page 6



 

occasions of late night music/dance events where the premises would remain 
open until midnight. The Applicant wished to provide other licensable activities 
but that the proposed police condition in this respect had not been agreed. 
 
He said that the police had initially raised a number of concerns and following 
meetings with the team representing the premises, they had produced a set of 
over 80 conditions to promote the licensing objectives. 
 
PC Taylor made representations on behalf of the Police regarding the 
conditions. 
 
Mr Barry, the Applicant and the prospective Premises Supervisor, Stephanie 
Harding then answered questions from members of the Sub-Committee and 
some of those who had made representations: Out Rawcliffe Parish 
Councillor Alison Metcalfe and Councillor Lynn Bowen, ward councillor for 
Hambleton and Stalmine who was a resident of Out Rawcliffe. 
 
Nick Clayton, Environmental Health Officer was then invited to speak and he 
confirmed that there had been no complaints to Environmental Protection in 
respect of the application and that there were sufficient conditions attached to 
allow for the premises to be operated as a music venue provided that events 
were restricted to indoors only to prevent any public nuisance. 
 
The Chairman then invited those who had made a representation to speak. 
Out Rawcliffe Parish Councillor Richard Beatson articulated his concerns in 
respect of potential nuisance, crime and disorder and public safety issues and 
Councillor Lynn Bowen voiced her concurrence with the concerns raised by 
Cllr Beatson. 
 
Mr Clayton then read out a proposed additional condition that he had freshly 
composed, which was intended to ensure compliance with the limiting of the 
output of amplified sound at music events held at the venue. He confirmed 
that conditions 1 and 2 as proposed on the part of environmental health were 
not required. 
 
The Police, Environmental Health, those who had made representations and 
the Applicant’s legal representative were each then invited to sum up their 
cases. 

   
The Applicant and his team, representatives of the responsible authorities, 
officers representing the licensing department and members of the public 
were all then asked to leave the Council Chamber to enable the Sub-
Committee to consider the application in private. After an extended period of 
discussion, the Chairman then requested that the attendees be readmitted to 
allow members of the Sub-Committee to ask some additional questions on 
issues they felt required further explanation.  
 
PC Taylor indicated that the greatest concern of the police was music/dance 
type events. The other parties were asked to leave to enable the members to 
consider the application in private. 
 

Page 7



 

After the members had deliberated and reached a decision, the other parties 
were asked to return and the Chairman delivered that decision and the 
reasons for it as below. 
  
Decision 
 
The Committee considered that conditions 42, 44, 45 and 50 met the 
licensing objectives as originally proposed by the police and that a limitation 
on the days of operation and a reduction in the hours applied for was 
appropriate. 
  
After due deliberation, the Sub-Committee agreed to grant a premises licence  
for the licensable activities set out in the Annex below and subject to the 
conditions set out in Schedule therein and subject to the attachment of the 
applicable mandatory conditions. 
 
Reasons for the Decision 

  
The Sub-Committee noted all the information before it, including the concerns 
that had been raised and also that the applicant had agreed to a number of 
conditions to be included in the operating schedule to help to mitigate any 
problems.  
   
In reaching their decision, the Sub-Committee had regard to: 

  

 the Council’s own Statement of Licensing Policy, in particular the 
following sections: 7.1 Planning 9.3 Conditions imposed at a hearing 
13.1 Prevention of crime and disorder 13.3 Prevention of public 
nuisance 17 Need for licensed premises 5.14, 

 the Statutory Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003, in particular the following sections: 1.16, 9.3, 9.4, 9.37-9.40, 
9.42-9.44 and 10.8-10.10, as reproduced at Appendix 8 of the report, 

 all the representations, 

 Licensing Act 2003, Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 

The Committee was satisfied that the licensable activities in the Annex 
below and the conditions in the Schedule below were all appropriate and 
that the grant of a new premises licence as described below subject to the 
conditions and the applicable mandatory conditions was proportionate and 
would promote and would not undermine the licensing objectives.  

It considered that the limitation of days, the reduction of hours and the 
conditions that it imposed were all required to meet the licensing 
objectives / promoting and not undermining the licensing objectives  

 

 

 

Page 8



 

Annex 

Sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises  

Sunday to Wednesday between 10am and 11pm 

Thursday to Saturday between 10am and midnight 

 

Live and recorded amplified music (indoors only)  

Sunday to Wednesday between 10am and 11pm 

Thursday to Saturday between 10am and midnight 

 

Plays, films, performances of dance, performances similar to live or recorded 
music, indoor sporting events, boxing or wrestling (all indoors only) 

Sunday to Wednesday between 10am and 11pm 

Thursday to Saturday between 10am and midnight 

  

Provision of Late Night Refreshment (indoors)  

Sunday to Wednesday between the relevant hours of 11pm and 11.30pm 

Thursday to Saturday between 11pm and midnight 

 

The premises is permitted to be open to the public  

Sunday to Wednesday between 10am and 11.30pm 

Thursday to Saturday between 10am and half past midnight 

 

subject to the relevant mandatory conditions and to the conditions which are 
set out in the Schedule below. 

 
Schedule 
 
Agreed by Applicant with Health and Safety Responsible Authority 
 
The Premises Licence Holder will produce an event specific Event Safety 
Management Plan for each event that takes place under the authority of this 
licence. 
 
Agreed by Applicant with Environmental Health Responsible Authority 
 

General PPN conditions  
 
1. The designated premises supervisor or the personal licence holder for 

Page 9



 

the premises who is supervising the sale or supply of alcohol at that 

time, shall not permit customers to congregate and consume alcohol 

sold or supplied by that premises in a public place within the immediate 

vicinity of the premises and in an area not so licensed for consumption 

to the annoyance or obstruction of others and shall prevent the removal 

of alcohol if it is intended for such a purpose. 

 
2. Notices will be displayed at the entrance and exits advising customers to 

leave quietly. 
 
3. The Licensee shall ensure that staff departing at night when the 

business has ceased trading, conduct themselves in such a manner to 
avoid disturbance to nearby residents. 

 
4. All internal doors to any entrance / exit point, fire exit doors and external 

windows shall be closed during hours of any regulated entertainment 
except in the event of an emergency, save for the purposes of access 
and egress. 

 
5. The volume of amplified sound used in connection with any regulated 

entertainment shall, at all times, be under the control of the Licence 
Holder or Management and the controlling mechanism shall be operated 
from a part of the premises inaccessible to the public. 

 
6. Noise generated from any regulated entertainment in the form of live or 

recorded music, mechanical ventilation and refrigeration plant shall not 
be audible at premises within close proximity so as to cause a public 
nuisance. 

 
7. The premises licence holder or their representatives shall ensure that 

the promoter sound system supplier and all individual sound engineers 
meet the music noise  level requirements at all times and have the 
means to enforce compliance on the output of amplified noise.  

 
8. No nuisance shall be caused by noise coming from the premises or 

vibration transmitted through the structure of the premises. 
 
9. There shall be no emission from the premises of any offensive smells, 

which are likely to cause a nuisance. 

10. No light from or on the premises and any other light under the control of 
the premises shall be provided where that light causes a nuisance to 
any nearby premises. 

 
11. Frequent collection of glasses and bottles will be undertaken to ensure 

that empty containers do not accumulate in or around licensed 
premises. 

 
12. Patrols will take place by members of staff, internally and externally, to 

limit any noise pollution when entertainment is being offered within the 
premises. 

Page 10



 

 
13. Organised outdoor music festivals are not permitted under the terms of 

this licence 
 
14. There shall be provided at the premises containers for the storage and 

disposal of waste foods and other refuse from the premises. Those 
containers shall be constructed, maintained and located so that access 
to them by vermin and unauthorised persons is prevented and 
arrangements shall be made for the regular lawful disposal of their 
contents. 

 
15. Refuse such as bottles shall be disposed of from the premises at a time 

when it is not likely to cause a disturbance to residents in the vicinity of 
the premises. 

 
16. A tamper-proof noise-limiting device capable of setting limits for third 

octaves shall be fitted to the Sound system within the premises and all 
amplified music played at the premises must pass through this sound 
limiter at a level agreed by the Council’s Environmental Health section. 
The noise limiter shall not be altered without prior agreement with the 
Council’s Environmental Health section. 

Music events/concerts 

The conditions laid out below will only be applicable to Music events/Concerts 
being provided under the authority of this licence and will take precedence 
over the general prevention of public nuisance conditions. 

1. No nuisance shall be caused by noise coming from the premises or by 
vibration transmitted through the structure of the premises. 

2. There shall be no emission from the premises of any offensive smells, 
which are likely to cause a nuisance. 

3. No light from or on the premises and any other light under the control 
of the premises shall be provided where that light causes a nuisance to 
any nearby premises. 

4. No member of the audience shall be allowed within 3 metres of any 

loudspeaker, The sound pressure level for the front-of-house around 

mixer position will restrict the whole audience sound level exposure to 

below an event level of 107dB or C-weighted peak sound pressure 

levels to below 140dB. 

5. Music Noise Levels (MNL) when assessed at the prediction stage or 
measured during sound checks or concerts should not exceed the 
background noise level by more than 15 dB(A) over a fifteen minute 
period 1metre from the façade of any noise sensitive premises prior to 
23:00. 
 

6. Where regulated entertainment is provided after 23:00, the music must 

not be audible within noise-sensitive premises with windows open in 

atypical manner for ventilation.  

Page 11



 

7. The control limits set at the mixer position shall be adequate to ensure 

that the low frequency Music Noise Level  (MNL) in the 63Hz and 

125Hz octave frequency bands  shall not cause any increase in the 

real time simultaneous when compared with the existing equivalent 

Leq(15min)(f) (63Hz and 125Hz) taken without the premises in 

operation. Measured not less than 1 metre from the façade of a noise 

sensitive premises (being premises where the occupants are likely to 

suffer nuisance from excessive noise), situated at least 2 km from the 

venue 

8. The Music Noise Level  should be measured using an integrating-

averaging sound level meter with type 2 or better of BS6698. The 

Background noise level should be measured using a sound level meter 

complying with type 2 or better of BS5969. Time weighting F (fast 

response)  

9. The Premises Licence Holder shall provide electronic sound limiters on 

the output amplifiers which can be pre-set to a given level, which level 

shall be reasonably determined from time to time by an authorised 

officer of the Licensing Authority; 

10. At least four weeks prior to any event being carried on under the 
authority of this premises licence, the licensee shall appoint a suitably 
qualified and experienced noise control consultant, to the reasonable 
approval of the Licensing Authority. The noise control consultant shall 
liaise between all parties including the Licensee, Promoter, sound 
system supplier, sound engineer and the licensing authority etc. on all 
matters relating to noise control prior to and during the event. 

 

11. If not already carried out, the noise control consultant shall carry out a 
survey to determine the background noise levels (as defined by the 
Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts) at eight 
locations around the venue representative of the noise sensitive 
premises likely to experience the largest increase in noise/highest 
noise level as a result of the concert. The information obtained from 
this survey shall be made available to the licensing authority four 
weeks prior to the event. 

 
12. The appointed noise control consultant shall continually monitor noise 

levels at the sound mixer position and advise the sound engineer 
accordingly to ensure that the noise limits are not exceeded. The 
Licensing Authority shall have access to the results of the noise 
monitoring at all times. 

 
13. The Premises Licence Holder or their representative shall ensure that 

the promoter, sound system supplier and all individual sound engineers 
are informed of the sound control limits and that any reasonable 
instructions from the noise control consultant regarding noise levels 
shall be implemented. 

 
14. Internal rehearsals and sound checks are permitted only between the 

hours of 08:00 and 20:00. 

Page 12



 

 
15. A noise propagation test shall be undertaken at least four hours prior to 

any event that involves licensable activities being carried on under the 
authority of this premises licence in order to set appropriate control 
limits at the sound mixer position. The sound system shall be 
configured and operated in a similar manner as intended for the event. 
The sound source used for the test shall be similar in character to the 
music likely to be produced during the event. 

 
16. Clear, legible and conspicuous notices shall be displayed at each public exit 

requesting patrons to avoid causing noise, nuisance or disturbance upon 
leaving the premises. 

 

17. There will be a mobile telephone number which is designated as a 
number specifically for noise complaints.  The mobile telephone which 
corresponds with said number will be attended to by a noise co-
ordinator through the duration of the event. 
 

18. Bins shall be placed at regular intervals along any route that patrons 
are likely to use for dispersal.  Said bins will be removed no later than 
the day after the event. 
 

19. There shall be links established with a taxi company to ensure that 
there are taxis available to take people away from the event throughout 
the duration of the event. 
 

20. Within 24 hours from the end of an event that involves licensable 
activities being carried on under the authority of this premises licence, 
any loose debris or litter on the premises or in the immediate vicinity of 
the premises shall have been cleared. 
 

21. During and after any event that involves licensable activities being 
carried on under the authority of this premises licence, waste will be 
stored in sealable pest proof containers and will be removed from the 
site by a suitably accredited agent.  

 

Car/vehicle Shows  
 

The conditions laid out below will be applicable in addition to the general 
Prevention of public nuisance which make part of this licence   

1A)  There shall be no nuisance caused by unnecessary usage of car 
horns or excessive usage of car horns. 

2A)  There shall be no nuisance caused by unnecessary revving of 
engines or excessive engine revving. 

3A ) There shall be no form of external amplification of sound. The only 
exemption to this condition will be the use of a PA system to deliver safety 
message/alerts only.  

4A) During any event that involves licensable activities being carried on 
under the authority of this premises licence, there will be a mobile 

Page 13



 

telephone number which is designated as a number specifically for noise 
complaints.  The mobile telephone which corresponds with said number 
will be attended to by a noise coordinator through the duration of the event 

 
Conditions Agreed by the Applicant with the Police 

 
The following conditions will apply to ALL licensable activity and ALL 
events (other ‘event specific’ conditions are detailed under other 
events): 
 

1. A documented Challenge 25 scheme will be operated at the premises.  
The Challenge 25 scheme shall be actively promoted and advertised at 
the premises and will ensure that any person purchasing alcohol, who 
appears to be under 25 years of age, shall be asked to provide 
acceptable identification to prove that they are 18 years of age or over.  
Failure to supply such identification will result in no sale or supply of 
alcohol to that person. 

2. The Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) will be actively promoted 
at the premises by the display of Challenge 25 posters bearing the 
PASS logo. 

3. A PASS accredited holographic proof of age card will be the main 
identification document accepted at the premises as proof of age.  A 
PASS card must be accepted as proof of age if a purchaser possesses 
one.  Where a purchaser does not possess a PASS accredited proof of 
age card, only the following alternative forms of alternative identification 
will be acceptable: 

(a)          Photo driving licence 
(b)          Passport or 
(c)         Her Majesty’s Forces Warrant Card 

4. An incident book will be maintained in which there will be recorded:  

 All incidents of crime and disorder  

 Refused sales to suspected under-age and drunken persons.  

 A record of any person asked to leave the premises.  

 Details of occasions on which the police are called to the premises.  

 A record of persons searched on suspicion that drugs are being 
carried and the reason for such suspicion.  

The book will be available for inspection by a police officer on demand.  

5. All staff involved with the provision of alcohol will successfully complete 
training in age related products prior to operating a till. Refresher 
training will also be successfully completed not more than every 6 
months, this will be fully documented and be available for inspection to 
police officers. 

6. All staff will be trained to refuse service to anyone who is drunk. Water 
will be provided where necessary to any person refused service through 
drink.  

7. CCTV equipment shall be installed and be maintained in good working 

Page 14



 

order in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. Training 
should be provided for staff members in the usage of the CCTV 
equipment. CCTV footage recorded must, as a minimum, cover each 
entry/exit point of the premises and be recording at all times when the 
premises is conducting licensable activities. 

8. The images recorded by the CCTV system shall be retained in unedited 
form for a period of not less than 30 days. 

9. The Data Controller will make footage available within a reasonable 
time to a Police Constable, where such request is made in accordance 
with and which satisfies the Data Protection Act 1998. 

10. Appropriate signage will be on display in prominent positions on the 
premises informing patrons that CCTV is in use. 

11. No persons under the age of 18 shall be employed on the premise in 
relation to the selling of alcohol. 

12. No person under the age of 21 will be allowed to organise or book a 
private function at the premises. 

13. Any persons under the age of 18 must be accompanied by a 
parent/guardian. 

14. There will be no adult only entertainment provided at the venue. (Adult 
entertainment is entertainment intended to be viewed by adults only and 
distinguished from family entertainment. The style of adult 
entertainment that normally includes sexual content qualifies as adult 
entertainment, including sex channels for television and pre-paid sex 
films for “on demand”, as well as adult movies, sex shops and strip 
clubs) provided at the premises. 

15. A personal licence holder should be present at all times during 
‘licensable activity’. 

16. A copy of the premises licence and its conditions will be available for 

inspection at all times. 

17. The licence holder will employ the services of a recognised and 
qualified security and stewarding company. This company will provide 
their own security, stewarding and crowd management plans which will 
form part of any EMP-event management plan. 

18. The licence holder will work closely with the Security Ops Manager and 
implement their recommendations on security and numbers needed 
dependent on any given event. However a minimum of 2 SIA registered 
door staff must be on duty for the first 100 customers from the start of 
each event (each event may differ on start times) to close followed by 
an extra one member of door staff for each additional 100 customers or 
part thereof. Extra door staff may be required for larger events and are 
conditioned specifically under each heading. 

19. All security staff and stewards will be easily identifiable and have 
appropriate training for their duties. A register will be maintained of all 
stewards and security staff employed before, during and after the Event 

Page 15



 

containing their full names, date of birth, home addresses, employers, 
event specific identification and where appropriate their SIA registration 
details (see next condition). These details will be made available to 
Lancashire Police.   

20. A written record shall be kept on the premises by the Designated 
Premises Supervisor of every person employed on the premises as a 
door supervisor in a register kept for that purpose. That record shall 
contain the following details: 

 the door supervisor's name, date of birth and home address 

 his/her Security Industry Authority licence number 

 the time and date he/she starts and finishes duty 

 the time of any breaks taken whilst on duty 

21. At all times that the premises is open to the public then there should be 
regular toilet checks conducted and documented accordingly. These 
checks will be done at regular intervals. The CCTV of the toilet areas 
will be monitored at all times.  

22. The premises shall operate a zero tolerance drugs policy (zero 
tolerance means “this venue will not tolerate any drug use or drug 
dealing and will employ different pro-active measures to tackle drug use 
or drug dealing”) Any person found in possession of drugs, the drugs 
will be seized and the person detained and the Police called. Said 
policy will be written and will be approved by Lancashire Constabulary, 
such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. 

23. This drugs policy shall include: 

An accredited drug dog will be on-site and utilised when the 

premises is open to the public and being used for the licensable 

activity of Music events/concerts, Sporting events including boxing 

and football live streaming/World cup fanzones. 

24. Confiscated and found drugs shall be stored, disposed, transferred in 
accordance with procedures agreed with the Lancashire Constabulary. 

25. During any event that involves licensable activities being carried on 
under the authority of this premises licence, the premises will operate a 
search policy to deter the carrying of drugs or weapons. Said policy will 
be written and will be approved by Lancashire Constabulary, such 
approval not to be unreasonably withheld. Notices will be displayed 
informing patrons of the search policy at the function.  

26. This search policy will include a knife arch at the point of entry and 

utilised  when the premises is open to the public and being used for the 

licensable activity of Music events/concerts, Sporting events including 

boxing and football live streaming/World cup fanzones. 

This search will be a condition of entry: 
 
A discrete search area will be provided. Anyone refusing a search will 
be denied entry to the licensed premises.  
 

Page 16



 

27. The organisers will employ the services of a qualified first aid provider-
the numbers of staff will be in line with The HSE Event Safety (Purple) 
Guide.  A dedicated and clearly signed first aid point will be manned at 
all times that the premises are open to the public. 

(The Purple Guide to Health, Safety and Welfare at Music and Other 
Events. The Purple Guide has been written by The Events Industry 
Forum in consultation with the events industry. Its aim is to help those 
event organisers who are duty holders to manage health and safety, 
particularly at large-scale music and similar events.) 
 

28. All emergency exits and entrance / exits will be kept clear at all times. 

29. No glass containers, glass bottles or cans shall be sold on the 
Licenced Premises. The event organiser shall take appropriate 
measures to prevent glass containers, glass bottles or cans being 
brought on to the premises by the public. 

30. Any drinks alcohol or otherwise will be served in vessels made from 
polycarbonate, plastic or other non-glass alternative except for Beer 
Festivals. 

31. All glass bottle beverages must be decanted into such a vessel prior to 
giving to the public. 

32. The organisers will have in place a media manager who will be 

responsible for all social media updates and press releases. A hotline 

will be put in place. Local residents will be able to contact the 

organisers on the hotline on Event days for information or with 

concerns about public nuisance. The hotline phone number will be 

circulated to residents by letter and on social media in advance of any 

Events.  

33. The organiser will employ the services of a dedicated traffic 

management company to undertake a survey of potential traffic impact 

and produce a traffic management plan that details measures to be put 

in place that will minimise this impact. The TMP must be approved by 

the WYSAG including Lancashire Highways 6 weeks prior to the Event. 

National guides are not sufficient for such a remote location. 

34. Said Traffic Management Plan will include the use of Marshalls to 

assist with directing traffic on access to the site, parking and the 

dispersal of patrons. Suitable off-road parking should be provided for 

any events where the public attend in their own vehicles. Vehicle 

movement within the licensed premises will be limited to those which 

are essential and will be controlled to ensure safety of the public and 

staff. 

35. All efforts should be made to ensure all patrons do not leave the site on 

foot particularly during the hours of darkness. Where any patron insists 

on leaving on foot then they should be given reflective safety bands. 

Page 17



 

This will be managed via the entrance gate where any patron leaving 

will be provided with a taxi or picked up via coaches/buses. The safety 

of the public on the back roads in the area is paramount and there 

should be no pedestrians from this venue allowed on these roads. 

36. During any event there shall be links established with a taxi company or 

companies to ensure taxis are available to take people away from the 

event during the licensable activity and at the conclusion of any event. 

Efforts should be made to ‘agree’ a service with a taxi company who 

can be relied upon to provide sufficient taxis to meet demand. Using 

local Wyre taxis on any busy weekend may not be appropriate due to 

the demand in the Wyre/Poulton area. The event manager should be 

able to provide evidence of research done and agreed service with a 

taxi company or companies to meet demand at any WYSAG meeting. 

37. Any area used at the entrance exit for patrons waiting for taxis should 

have SIA door staff cover to manage the patrons and prevent any crime 

or disorder. 

38. For each ‘event’ an Event Manager will be identified and be responsible 

for the overall running and management of each event. Where possible, 

this person will be a personal alcohol licence holder. 

39. On the day of an event the event manager will hold a briefing with ALL 

staff including security and stewards prior to the event starting. During 

the event the event manager will meet with head of security and key 

staff at agreed intervals to identify any issues, updates and other 

taskings. A two-way radio system will be used to maintain 

communication between event organisers and steward / security 

management.  

40. The organiser must attend at least one WYSAG meeting held prior to 
the Event. 

 
41. The ESMP must be approved by the WYSAG at least one month prior 

to the event.  Any changes requested to be made to the ESMP after its 

approval by WYSAG, must be approved by Police Licensing.  

 

The ESMP must include, but not be limited to, the following: 

 

1. Introduction and Event Overview including details of proposed 

entertainment 

2. Event Contacts 

3. Licensing Objectives - Measures to address the Licensing 

Objectives 

4. Organisational Structure, Roles & Responsibilities 

5. Crowd Management Plan including plans for access, egress, 

Page 18



 

dispersal and evacuation 

6. Security and Stewarding Plan 

7. Alcohol Management Plan 

8. Crime Reduction Plan 

9. Capacity 

10. Fire Safety 

11.  Cleansing 

12.  Waste Management Plan including litter collection 

13.  Communication 

14.  Temporary Demountable Structures 

15. Site Safety Plan including Safety Rules 

16.  Sanitary Facilities 

17.  Medical and First Aid Facilities 

18. Concessions 

19.  Management of Bars & sale of alcohol 

20.  Power & Electrical Installations 

21. Incident and Emergency Plans including Major Incident Plan 

22.  Transport Plan including the Traffic Management Plan 

23.  Sound Assessment and Noise Management Plan 

24.  Provision of drinking water 

25.  Facilities of Disabled Persons 

26.  Welfare and Lost/Found Children 

27.  Drugs Policy 

42. The organiser will produce a detailed, scaled draft site plan which will 

include, but not be limited to, all entrances and emergency exits, first 

aid and welfare points, fire points, temporary bars (if any), kitchens, 

staging, structures, marquees and sanitary provision.  The draft site 

plan will be discussed within WYSAG and when agreed it will form part 

of the ESMP.  

43. The ESMP will form the framework within which the event is managed 

and operated - the conditions and operating procedures defined in the 

final version of the ESMP will be adhered to. 

44. Any alterations to the running of the Event made during the time the 

licence is in operation must be agreed by the Event Liaison Team 

(ELT) which shall be appointed by WYSAG. 

The following conditions are ‘event specific’ to run alongside above 
conditions: 
 
Music events/concerts 
 

1. Events are to be ticket only and only available to customers aged 18 
and over when alcohol is being served at the event.  There must be a 
robust management of ticket sales to ensure no one under the age of 
18 is able to obtain entry and appropriate checks made on entry to the 

Page 19



 

event. 

2. Tickets should be limited in line with capacity level of premises.  

3. Events will be advertised explaining exactly what the event is with start 
times and finish. This information will include all safety advice, drugs 
checks and due diligence. 

4. Extra Door Staff requirements: For any music events the organisers 
must risk assess these events to ensure there are extra security cover 
in place to carry out searches, crowd control, toilet watch and visits and 
‘spotters’. The ‘spotters’ responsibility will be to monitor the movement 
of the crowd particularly watching for sways, surges and/or unusual 
crowd behaviour. In the event of that any of these occur within the 
crowd the ‘spotters’ will need to make immediate contact with the 
Premises Licence Holder or Event Organiser. They will need to then 
decide on the appropriate course of action.  

5. When a band is performing or DJ that is known to have a lively crowd 
the Event Manager and Licence Holder will ensure that there are two 
‘spotters’ stationed at the main stage. There will also be extra ‘spotters’ 
positioned close by to monitor the crowd from the sides.   

6. It is the responsibility of the Event Manager to liaise with the Premises 
Licence holder to have sufficient extra door staff in place to manage 
any music events. 

7. During any music events there will be in place suitable crowd barriers 
in front of the security pit. 

8. There will be suitable signage in place to discourage crowd surfing to 
the reasonable satisfaction of the responsible authorities. 

 
Weddings/ funerals 

1. All private bookings should be risk assessed by management.  

Payment should be via card only with full details taken at point of 

booking.  Records of the booking should be kept and any concerns 

passed to Police Licensing. These records should be available for 

inspection by Police or any other responsible authority. 

 
Sporting events including boxing, football live streaming / World 
cup fanzones, fitness events  

 
1. Any other requirement for SIA Door Staff to be done on a risk 

assessment basis such as:  

2. Music Festivals, St Patrick’s Day, Bank Holidays, last Friday before 
Christmas known as ‘Black Eye Friday’, Any showing of major sporting 
events including Boxing, Football (World Cup, European 
Championships, Premier League), Wrestling etc,    

3. Where there is information from Police where security is needed such 

Page 20



 

as a wake, funeral or high tensions in the area and community.  

4. The manager in charge must risk assess these events and have in 
place sufficient SIA door staff cover to manage the premises and 
ensure the Licensing Objectives are being promoted.  

5. Extra door staff shall be employed as ‘spotters’ during football events 
to monitor the crowd for any potential for crime and disorder.   

6. Any event involving the showing of live streaming of football/world cup 
fan zones all patrons are required to be seated whilst watching this 
event. There shall be no vertical drinking allowed. Any persons who fail 
to comply should be ejected. 

7. Any event involving Boxing will be professional boxing only. At no time 
will there be white collar boxing. At no time will the premises put on any 
MMA events. 

Farming/ agricultural events 
 

At no time will the premises be used for any Young Farmers events. 

The following events will have the following added conditions: 
 

 Drive in cinema /shows 

 Family Fun days 

 Scarefest 

 Winter Wonderland 

 VW campers/ classic car shows 

 Beer Festival 

 Dance events 

 Fairs/ expos 
 

1. Any drinks alcohol or otherwise will be served in vessels made from 
polycarbonate, plastic or other non-glass alternative except for Beer 
Festivals. 

2. Lost children: 

3. The above events where necessary will include a dedicated lost / found 

child policy. 

4. Children under 16 will be issued with a 'child safety' wristband on which 

an adult's contact details can be written.  

5. Accompanying adults will be encouraged to fill in details and put 

wristband on the child. 

6. The organiser will create a dedicated welfare point which is clearly 

signed and manned at all times while the premises are open to the 

public. This point will also be indicated on any public literature and 

marked on any public facing maps. 

Page 21



 

 

 
Conditions by Committee (cf Police conditions) 
 
To apply to ALL licensable activity and ALL events  
 

1. For events involving over 300 people, the event organiser must give at 
least two months’ notice to the local authority, residents and the Wyre 
Safety Advisory Group (WYSAG) of the proposed Event. 
 
(imposing Police condition numbered 42 on page 11 of the second 
Licensing Sub-Committee Supplement as originally proposed) 
 

2. The licensee should contact Police Licensing and Ops Planning at 
least 2 months in advance to decide if an event should go through 
WYSAG if in doubt.  
 
(imposing Police condition numbered 44 on page 11 of the second 
Licensing Sub-Committee Supplement as originally proposed*) 
 

3. For events involving over 300 people, the licensee must complete a full 
Event Safety Management Plan (ESMP) prior to each Event. 
 
 (imposing Police condition numbered 45 on page 11 of the second 
Licensing Sub-Committee Supplement as originally proposed*)  
 

4. After each Event over 300 then a debrief will be held with WYSAG 
representatives. This can be provided in an email to licensing for 
circulation  
 
(imposing Police condition numbered 50 on page 12 of the second 
Licensing Sub-Committee Supplement as originally proposed*). 
 

5. Licensable activities shall only be carried out under the authority of this 
premises licence on 12 days in any calendar year  
 
(imposing variation of Police condition numbered 11 on page 8 of the 
second Licensing Sub-Committee Supplement*)  
 
 
* Words in italics are not part of the condition 

 
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and finished at 9.57 pm. 
 
Date of Publication: 11 June 2021 
 

Page 22



 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes  

 
The minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee meeting of Wyre Borough Council held on 
Tuesday, 13 July 2021 at 6pm in the Council Chamber - Civic Centre, Poulton-le-Fylde. 
 

 
Licensing Sub-Committee members present: 
Councillors Robinson, Cartridge and Smith 
 
Apologies for absence: 
None. 
 
Other councillors present: 
Councillors Henderson and Le Marinel 
 
Officers present: 
Daphne Courtenage, Assistant Democratic Services Officer 
Duncan Jowitt, Democratic Services Officer 
Mary Grimshaw, Legal Services Manager and Monitoring Officer 
Mandy Seddon, Manager of Food, Health & Safety and Licensing  
 
No members of the public or press attended the meeting. 
 

 
12 Apologies  

 
13 Declarations of Interest  

 
None. 
 

14 Application for a new Premises Licence - Cybele, 21 Queens Square, 
Poulton-le-Fylde, FY6 7BW  
 
The Corporate Director Environment submitted a report to provide members 
of the Licensing Sub-Committee with information to assist them at a hearing 
to determine an application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 by 
Cybele PLF Ltd, for a new premises license.  
 
The Manager of Food, Health & Safety and Licensing, Mandy Seddon, 
introduced the report. She explained that the matter was before the Sub-
Committee as the applicant was seeking permission to sell alcohol for 
consumption on the premises between 10am and midnight on each day of the 
week. She explained that no objections had come from relevant authorities for 

Page 23



 

the premises license, though additional conditions between the applicant, 
Environmental Health and the Police had been agreed. Representations had 
been received from two persons, being the ward councillors for the area, 
regarding noise nuisance and the lateness of the terminal hour.  
The Manager of Food, Health & Safety and Licensing also noted that the 
applicant had withdrawn a provision in his application for regulated 
entertainment by the way of recorded music.  
 
The Sub-Committee considered the following documents: 

 The report of the Corporate Director Environment 

 Additional information submitted by the applicant following the original 

publication of the agenda 

The Sub-Committee heard from the applicant and founder of Cybele PLF Ltd, 
who spoke in support of the application.  
 
The Sub-Committee also heard from the two objecting ward councillors, 
Councillors Henderson and Le Marinel.  
 
Members asked the applicant about membership numbers and whether the 
café/bar would only be open to members and the capacity in and outside the 
premises. The applicant said that he was a building surveyor by profession 
but was a passionate cyclist and the business was a unique concept for the 
area based on his extensive travels. The main focus of the business was sale 
and repair of bikes but there was also a cycling studio upstairs with education 
and coaching available. He stated that the venue with a licence would mainly 
cater for cyclists having post ride beers with occasional guest speakers in 
attendance but it would be open to the public. He stated that the late hour 
would not be activated often but would give him the flexibility so he wouldn’t 
need to apply for a TENs extension every time he wanted to open the 
business later in the evening. He noted that there were other late licences in 
close proximity to his business.  The applicant stated that he would be 
applying for a pavement license to increase outdoor seating.  
 
Members then considered the application in a private session. The Licensing 
Sub-Committee then reconvened and the Chairman announced the Sub-
Committee’s decision, as below.  
 
 
 
Decision 
 
After due deliberation, the Sub-Committee agreed to grant a premises but 
with reduced times for the licenseable activities subject to the conditions 
agreed with Environmental Health and the police as detailed below. 
 
Reasons for the decision 
 
The Sub-Committee noted all the information before it, including the concerns 
that had been raised. In reaching their decision, the Sub-Committee had 
regard to: 

Page 24



 

 

  The Council’s own Statement of Licensing Policy, in particular the following 
sections: 9.3 Conditions imposed at a hearing, 13.3 Prevention of public 
nuisance, 17 Need for licensed premises, 18 Cumulative impact 

 The Statutory Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, 
in particular the following sections: 1.16, 9.3, 9.4, 9.37-9.40, 9.42-9.44 and 
10.8-10.10, as reproduced at Appendix 8 of the report,  

 All the representations, 

 Licensing Act 2003, Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010  
 
In reaching this decision the members noted the proximity of residential 
properties to the licensed premises and the potential through the operation of 
the business to impact on those residents through public nuisance and 
thought a reduction in times was appropriate for the majority of the working 
week. However they also considered the rights of the licensed premises to 
develop their business potential and considered the longer hours were 
appropriate at the weekend for three nights of the week. The Committee also 
noted the conditions agreed with Environmental Health and the police and 
considered they were appropriate for the promotion of the licenseable 
objectives.  
 

 
Supply of Alcohol/ Closing Times: 
 
Sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises 
Sunday to Wednesday between 10am and 10:30pm, with closing at 11pm 
Thursday to Saturday between 10am and midnight, with closing at 12:30am 
 
 
Schedule 
 
Agreed by Applicant with the Police 

1. Security / staff arrangements will be sufficient to discourage the sale 

and consumption of drugs and shall ensure such arrangements include 

regular checks of toilet areas at least every 30 minutes. 

2. Clearly visible notices shall be displayed advising those attending that: 

a) It is a condition of entry that customers agree to be searched 

and 

b) Police will be informed if anyone is found in possession of 

controlled substances or weapons. 

3. Records of incidents involving the use, and/or detection of drugs shall 

be maintained and those records shall be available for inspection. 

Confiscated and found drugs shall be transferred to the police in 

accordance with procedures agreed with Lancashire Constabulary. 

4. Functions which specifically target young people aged 17-18 years (for 

example birthday parties) will not be allowed to take place on the 

premises. 

Page 25



 

5. A minimum of one SIA licensed member of door staff will be on duty 

from 20:00hours every Friday and Saturday, Sunday before Bank 

Holiday, Christmas Eve, Boxing Day and New Year’s Eve. At all other 

times the license holder will determine an appropriate number of door 

staff, having regard to a risk assessment maintained by the premises 

license holder. The document must be available for Inspection if 

required. 

6. An incident book will be maintained in which shall be recorded:- 

i. All incidents of crime and disorder 

ii. Refused sales to suspected under-age and drunken 

persons 

iii. A record of any person asked to leave the premises or 

removed from the premises 

iv. Details of occasions on which the police are called to the 

premises 

v. A record of persons searched on suspicion that drugs are 

being carried and the reason for such suspicion 

The book will be available for inspection by a police 

officer 

7. Any outside area which is used for the consumption of alcohol shall 

cease to be so used at 22:00hrs. Any such area will be checked by a 

competent person at intervals of a minimum of 30 minutes whilst in 

use. 

8. All tables and chairs in the outside area shall either be fixed to the floor 

or be stacked, secured and covered no more than 30 minutes after the 

time at which patrons are no longer permitted to consume drinks in the 

area. 

9. In the outside area, the supply of intoxicating liquor shall be by 

waiter/waitress service only and only to persons seated at tables. 

10. CCTV will be installed at the premises and will comply with the 

following: 

a) The CCTV system shall be installed, maintained and 

operated to the reasonable satisfaction of Lancashire 

Constabulary. The entrance and bar areas are to be covered 

by the system. The system will incorporate a camera 

covering each of the entrance doors and will be capable of 

providing an image which is regarded as identification 

standard. 

b) The system will display on any recording the correct time 

and date of the recording. 

c) Digital recording shall be held for a minimum of 21 days 

Page 26



 

respectively, after the recording is made and will be made 

available to the Police or any authorised persons acting for 

Responsible Authority for inspection upon request. 

Agreed by Applicant with Environmental Health Officer 
1. No nuisance shall be caused by noise coming from the premises or 

vibration transmitted through the structure of the premises. 

2. There shall be no emission from the premises of any offensive smells, 

which are likely to cause a nuisance. 

3. No light from or on the premises and any other light under the control 

of the premises shall be provided where that light causes a nuisance to 

any nearby premises. 

4. There shall be no live entertainment, live music or recorded music to 

the external licensed area. 

5. During the final hour of daily trading appropriate announcements are to 

be made and/or images projected to remind patrons of the need to 

leave the premises without causing annoyance, nuisance or 

disturbance to local residents and to advise patrons of any taxi free-

phone or collection arrangements available upon the premises  

6. Notices will be displayed at the entrance and exits advising customers 

to leave quietly. 

7. The Licensee shall ensure that staff departing at night when the 

business has ceased trading, conduct themselves in such a manner to 

avoid disturbance to nearby residents. 

8. Refuse such as bottles shall be disposed of from the premises at a 

time when it is not likely to cause a disturbance to residents in the 

vicinity of the premises. 

9. There shall be provided at the premises containers for the storage and 

disposal of waste foods and other refuse from the premises. Those 

containers shall be constructed, maintained and located so that access 

to them by vermin and unauthorised persons is prevented and 

arrangements shall be made for the regular lawful disposal of their 

contents.  

 
The meeting started at 5.59 pm and finished at 6.58 pm. 
 
Date of Publication: XXX 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report of: Meeting Date 

Mark Billington, 
Corporate Director 

Environment 
Licensing Committee 2 September 2021 

 

Application for a new Premises Licence - 
The Linden Tree Tea Room, 31 Linden Ave, Thornton Cleveleys, FY5 2EZ  

 
 
1. Purpose of report 

 1.1 
 
 

To assist Members to determine an application submitted under section 
17 of the Licensing Act 2003, by Mr Steven Wise for a new premises 
licence. 

2. Outcomes 

 2.1 The application be determined. 

3. Recommendation 

 3.1 
 
 

Members consider the application and representations and determine 
whether granting a licence in the terms applied for, would adversely 
impact on one or more of the Licensing Objectives. 

4. Background 

 4.1 On 12 July 2021, an application was submitted by Mr Steven Wise for a 
new premises licence in respect of 31 Linden Avenue, Thornton 
Cleveleys, FY5 2EZ (Appendix 1). 

 4.2 The applicant wishes to be authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on 
the premises, between the following hours: 

Monday to Wednesday 11:00 hrs and 18:00 hrs  

Thursday to Saturday 11:00 hrs and 22:30 hrs 

Sunday 11:00 hrs and 20:00 hrs 

 4.3 The applicant also wishes to be open to the public for a further 30 
minutes after the terminal hour for alcohol sales, to facilitate ‘drinking up’ 
time for customers. 

 4.4 The application was advertised in accordance with The Licensing Act 
2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



2005 and at the end of the consultation period; there was one 
representation from a Responsible Authority and twenty one  
representations from other persons against this application. 

 4.5 Section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, requires the 
Licensing Authority to hold a hearing to consider an application and any 
relevant representations, within twenty working days following the end of 
the statutory twenty-eight day consultation period, which ended on 9 
August 2021. 

5. Key issues and proposals 
 

 5.1 The Linden Tree Tea Rooms is a small ground floor café situated in the 
middle of a residential housing estate. According to their website the 
premises currently opens from 07:30 hrs to 16:30 hrs Monday to Saturday. 

 5.2 It is one of six semi-detached properties, served by a small section of 
private road, which have commercial use on the ground floor and 
residential accommodation available above (Appendix 2). 

 5.3 The applicant only seeks to be authorised for the sale of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises.  

Section 177A of the Licensing Act 2003 provides that performances of 
amplified live music or the playing of recorded music at on-licensed 
premises, is exempt from licensing controls where:- it takes place between 
08.00 hrs and 23.00 hrs, (or the hours permitted for on-sales, if shorter); 
and the audience is not more than 500.  

In addition, live unamplified music provided between 08.00 hrs and 23.00 
hrs, on any premises where audience numbers are below 500, is not 
subject to licensing controls. 

 5.4 Should the provision of exempted musical entertainment on licensed 
premises, undermine one or more of the Licensing Objectives and give rise 
to a review application, the Committee may dis-apply the provisions of 
Section 177A and remove this exemption at the subsequent review 
hearing. 

 5.5 The Planning Department have confirmed that they have no observations 
to make in respect of this application.  

 5.6 Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service have confirmed that they have no 
objection to the granting of this application (Appendix 3). 

 5.7 The Police have not objected to the granting of this application, but have 
agreed a number of additional conditions with the applicant to promote the 
prevention of crime and disorder objective (Appendix 4). 

 5.5 Environmental Heath have objected to the application. They indicate that 
they have been unable to agree to a condition to address all of their 

Page 30



concerns about the potential for noise nuisance arising from drinkers using 
the outside seating areas in the evenings (Appendix 5). 

 5.6 There have been no other responses from Responsible Authorities. 

 5.7 Representations objecting to this application have been received from 21 
other persons (Appendix 6). 

 5.9 The objectors are all concerned about the potential for noise disturbance 
and/or antisocial behaviour that the sale and consumption of alcohol at the 
premises and musical entertainment could give rise to, particularly during 
the later hours applied for on Thursday to Sunday. 

 5.10 Many also raise concerns about parking issues. Members are aware that 
these are not relevant considerations under the Licensing Act 2003, but 
records show that highway and parking matters were considered when the 
application for a change of use from retail unit to café was granted by the 
Council’s Planning service in January 2019. 

 5.11 When considering the application Members should take into account the 
Council’s own Statement of Licensing Policy. The following sections are 
particularly relevant to this application. 

9.3    Conditions imposed at a hearing 
13.3  Prevention of public nuisance 
 

 5.14 Members are also directed to the Statutory Guidance issued under section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and in particular the following sections: 1.16, 
9.3, 9.4, 9.37-9.40, 9.42-9.44 and 10.8-10.10, which are reproduced at 
Appendix 7. 

 5.15 After having regard to all the representations, the council’s Statement of 
Policy and the Statutory Guidance, the Committee must consider whether 
granting the application in the terms applied for, would undermine any of 
the licensing objectives. 

 5.16 If it is satisfied that the licensing objectives would not be undermined, it 
should grant the licence in the terms applied for. 

 5.17 If, however it is concerned that granting the application would have the 
potential to undermine one or more of the licensing objectives, it must then 
consider what, if any, steps would be appropriate to secure the promotion 
of the licensing objectives. 

It may take any of the following steps: 

 Grant a licence subject to such conditions that the authority considers 

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 Exclude from the scope of the licence, any of the licensable activities 

to which the application relates (this can include revising the permitted 

hours for licensable activities). 

Page 31



 Reject the whole or part of the application. 

 5.18 All parties to the application have been invited to attend the hearing and 
have been sent a copy of this report and notice of the hearing procedure. 

Financial and legal implications 

Finance 
There are no financial implications directly associated with this 
application. 

Legal 

Any party to the hearing has the right of appeal to the Magistrates 
Court within 21 days if they are aggrieved by the decision.  
The hearing should be conducted following the principles of natural 
justice and in accordance with the Council’s own hearing procedure. 

Other risks/implications: checklist 

If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with 
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist officers 
on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There are no 
significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues marked with an 
x. 
 

risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x 

community safety   asset management x 

equality and diversity x  climate change x 

sustainability x  ICT x 

health and safety x  data protection x 

 
Processing Personal Data 

 
In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the 
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also required.  
If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection and processing 
of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a new working 
arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed and signed off 
by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance with the Data 
Protection Act 2018.  
 

report author telephone no. email date 

Niky Barrett 01253 887236 Niky.barrett@wyre.gov.uk  12.07.21 

 
 

List of background papers: 

name of document date where available for inspection 

   

 

Page 32

mailto:Niky.barrett@wyre.gov.uk


List of appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Copy of application and plan 
Appendix 2 – Location map and images 
Appendix 3 – Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service consultation response  
Appendix 4 – Lancashire Constabulary consultation response 
Appendix 5 – Environmental Health (Pollution) consultation response  
Appendix 6 – Representations from other persons  
Appendix 7 – Extract from the S.182 Statutory Guidance 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



APPENDIX 7 

Licence conditions – general principles  

1.16  Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting 

the parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of wording such 

as “must”, “shall” and “will” is encouraged. Licence conditions:  

• must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;  

• must be precise and enforceable;  

• must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve;  

• should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities 

placed on the employer by other legislation;  

• must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises 

and events concerned;  

• should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated 

that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual 

case;  

• should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation;  

• should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met;  

• cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct 

management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the behaviour 

of customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and  

• should be written in a prescriptive format.  

Where representations are made  

9.3  Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible 

authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant (see paragraphs 9.4 

to 9.10 below), the licensing authority’s discretion will be engaged. It will also be 

engaged if another person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, 

which are also not frivolous or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below). Relevant 

representations can be made in opposition to, or in support of, an application and can 

be made by any individual, body or business that has grounds to do so.  

Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations  

9.4  A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence 

on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a 

representation from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by 

competition from new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a 

representation by a businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would 

deter customers from entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant 

to prevent that nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, 

representations should relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from 

premises on the objectives. For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, 

they should be confined to the subject matter of the variation. There is no requirement 

for a responsible authority or other person to produce a recorded history of problems 

Page 97



at premises to support their representations, and in fact this would not be possible for 

new premises.  

Hearings  

9.37  As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the 

steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives 

that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed 

areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written 

representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the 

applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and 

should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.   

9.38  In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the 

overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate 

weight to:  

• the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;  

• the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;  

•   this Guidance;  

• its own statement of licensing policy.  

9.39 The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the 

conclusion of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide 

reasons to support it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties. 

Notification of a decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party 

to appeal. After considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant 

the application subject to such conditions that are consistent with the operating 

schedule. Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the 

licensing objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition 

that is merely aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which relate 

solely to the health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any conditions 

added to the licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed when a 

hearing has not been necessary.  

9.40 Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this 

is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify 

a designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable 

activities. In the interests of transparency, the licensing authority should publish 

hearings procedures in full on its website to ensure that those involved have the most 

current information. 

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives  

9.42  Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the 

promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should 

be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any 

Page 98



representations or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or 

other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the 

case may be.  

9.43  The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate 

for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to 

achieve.  

9.44  Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the 

licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable 

to achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide 

that no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the 

potential burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder (such 

as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the 

potential benefit in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is 

imperative that the authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its 

determination are limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and 

nothing outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence variations, the 

licensing authority should consider wider issues such as other conditions already in 

place to mitigate potential negative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives 

and the track record of the business. Further advice on determining what is appropriate 

when imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The 

licensing authority is expected to come to its determination based on an assessment 

of the evidence on both the risks and benefits either for or against making the 

determination. 

10. Conditions attached to premises licences and club premises certificates 

Imposed conditions  

10.8  The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has been 

exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result of 

a hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to 

impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In order to 

promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions may be included that are 

aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This provision also applies to 

minor variations.  

10.9  It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to promote 

the licensing objectives.  

Proportionality  

10.10  The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size, type, 

location and characteristics and activities taking place at the premises concerned. 

Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions 

which ignore these individual aspects should be avoided. For example, conditions 

should not be used to implement a general policy in a given area such as the use of 

Page 99



CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where they would not be 

appropriate to the specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the 

prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment 

might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work checks on 

all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any document 

checked as part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed premises. Licensing 

authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the indirect costs that 

can arise because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events that are 

valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes. Licensing 

authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only those which 

are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.   

Page 100



 
 
 
 

 
 

Report of: Meeting Date 

Mark Billington, 
Corporate Director 

Environment 
Licensing Committee  2 September 2021 

 

Mobile Homes – Fit and Proper Person Application Fees 

 
 
1. Purpose of report 

 
 1.1 

 
 

To consider and agree the discretionary fees for the Fit and Proper 
Person function assessment for the owners/operators of residential 
mobile home sites brought in by The Mobile Homes (Requirement for 
Manager of Site to be Fit and Proper Person) (England) Regulations 
2020 (‘the regulations’)  
 

2. Outcomes 
 

 2.1 
 
 

To agree the level of discretionary fees and charges effective 
immediately for the Fit and Proper Person assessment for the 
owners/operators of residential mobile home sites. 
 

3. Recommendation 
 

 3.1 
 
 

That the following proposed fees and charges to be implemented with 
immediate effect. 
 

 Fit and Proper Person application fee - £306  

 Fit and Proper Person annual fee - £98  
 

4. Background  
 

 4.1 
 
 

The Mobile Homes (Requirement for Manager of Site to be Fit and 
Proper Person) (England) Regulations 2020 (‘the regulations’) require 
that a local authority must be satisfied, that either:  

Page 101

Agenda Item 7



1. the owner of a relevant protected mobile home site is a fit and 
proper person to manage the site, or;  

2. that a person appointed by the owner to manage the site is a fit 
and proper person to do so.  

 4.2 The term relevant protected site is defined in Section 5A(5) of the 
Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960. It applies to land in 
respect of which a site licence is required, other than land in respect of 
which the relevant planning permission under Part 3 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 or the site licence is:- 

(a) expressed to be granted for holiday use only, or 

(b) otherwise so expressed or subject to such conditions that there are 
times of the year when no caravan may be stationed on the land for 
human habitation. 

 4.3 In Wyre there are sixteen licensed mobile home sites which vary in size 
from 10 to 172 residential mobile homes, which are classed as relevant 
protected sites for the purpose of this legislation (Appendix 1). 

 4.4 This requirement is to ensure that those responsible for operating and 
managing a relevant protected site are of sufficient integrity and good 
character to be responsible for the management of a regulated site. It 
also helps to ensure they do not pose a risk to the welfare or safety of 
persons occupying mobile homes on the site. 

 4.5 The regulations state that the local authority may charge a fee for dealing 
with an application including undertaking an assessment of that person 
based on the information provided in the application. It also allows a fee 
to be charged for including their details in the register of ‘Fit and Proper 
Persons’ in relation to the management of sites. Before the council may 
charge fees for this process, the proposed fees must be set out in a Fee 
Policy and adopted by the council. 
 

 4.6 The Fit and Proper Person assessment (FPPA) must include 
consideration of the applicant’s legal interest in the site, their conduct e.g. 
any criminal record they may hold and the site’s financial and 
management arrangements. The application may be approved; approved 
with conditions attached; or refused. Applicants aggrieved by the 
council’s decision have a right of appeal. 
 

 4.7 In addition to charging an initial application fee for assessing whether a 
site owner is a ‘Fit and Proper Person’ who can be included on the 
register, councils may also charge an annual fee to cover the costs of 
monitoring the scheme and any conditions attached to an applicant. 
 

 4.8 Where a site owner or their manager fails the FPPA and they are unable 
to identify and appoint a suitable alternative manager, who must also 
undergo and meet the requirements of the FPPA, the council could 

Page 102



appoint a person to manage the site, with the consent of the site owner. 
The reasonable costs of this action can be recovered from the site. 
 

 4.9 It is an offence for a site owner to (a) cause or permit land to be operated 
as a park home site unless they, or the person appointed to manage the 
site is a fit and proper person to manage the site; (b) provide false or 
misleading information or fail to provide information in an application; (c) 
fail to comply with a requirement set as a condition of the local authority’s 
decision to include a person on the register. If convicted of a breach of 
the fit and proper person requirement, the site owner will face a level 5 
fine (unlimited). 
 

 4.10 These Regulations do not apply to family-occupied sites that are not 
operated on a commercial basis. 

 
5. Key issues and proposals 

 
 5.1 The timetable for these Regulations being implemented is as follows: 

 
• The Regulations were made in September 2020 and come into force 

on 1 July 2021. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) published government guidance to local 
authorities in June 2021 to assist with the preparation of policies and 
processes for undertaking this role and this has been taken into 
consideration in drafting the Fee Policy. 

 
• Site owners/licence holders will have three months from 1 July 2021 

to submit completed applications to local authorities. The deadline for 
applications is therefore 1 October 2021. 

 
 5.2 In setting its fees, the council has had regard to the ‘Fit and Proper 

Person Test Guide for Local Authorities on Setting Fees’ issued by 
MHCLG (June 2021). 
 

 5.3 The calculations take into consideration the time spent by officers in 
carrying out certain operations and activities and these are set down in 
the guidance. As this is a new process for Licensing and Environmental 
Health, the times included for various activities in the calculations are 
based on our knowledge of other similar processes. It may transpire that 
the time apportioned for the activities has been underestimated or 
overestimated and this will be taken into consideration when the fees are 
reviewed. 
 

 5.4 If the fees are introduced, the actual time taken to administer the scheme, 
undertake the assessments, maintain the register and to monitor any 
conditions attached to the applicant will be recorded, to establish an 
accurate record of officer time spent on each applicant. The policy will be 
reviewed annually and at the first review, the fee structure may need to 
be amended to take account of the findings of the recorded activities 
although material changes are not anticipated. 

Page 103



 
 5.5 The council is not permitted to make a profit from the FPPA fee income. 

The costs to which the council may have regard when calculating the 
various fees are set down in the guidance produced by MHCLG. 
Those costs include: Dealing with enquiries, correspondence/telephone 
calls to make appointments, handling and investigating complaints, 
updating computer records, processing the fee, preparing reports, time 
spent consulting with other organisations and legal advice. All the fees 
are required to be calculated on a cost recovery basis.  
 

 5.6 The regulations permit the council to charge two types of fee to cover its 
costs: 
 

1. Fit and Proper Person application fee £306 - to cover the cost 

of assessing applications to be included on the fit and proper 

register. 

 
2. Fit and Proper Person annual fee £98 - to cover the cost of 

monitoring the scheme or conditions attached to the register. 

Payment of the annual fee may also be required as a condition 

of inclusion in the register.  

 5.7 Applications for a FPPA will not be processed until the appropriate fee 
has been paid and all the necessary supplementary documentation 
provided. Fees are not refundable if the application is not granted. 
 

 5.8 Payment for the Annual FPPA Fee will be invoiced annually. 
 

 5.9 There is no legal requirement under the Regulations for public 
consultation in respect of the introduction of these fees and given the 
time restraints, it would not be feasible to undertake consultation prior to 
the date that the council must be in a position to receive applications. 
 

 5.10 It is proposed that the Policy comes into operation as soon as possible as 
the Regulations came into force on 1 July 2021 and applications can be 
received from this date up to 1 October 2021.   
 

Financial and legal implications 

Finance 

The introduction of FPPA fees will result in some additional income to the 
Licensing Service. Based on 16 sites in Wyre this will attract £4,896 
every five years from the £306 fee and £1,568 per annum from the 
annual £98 fee (the annual fee will not apply in the fifth year if renewal 
takes place).  
 
However, the detailed scrutiny of FPPA applications required by the 
legislation, together with the monitoring of the FPPA and any conditions 
attached to the register will place an increased demand on the resources 
of the Licensing and Environmental Health Team. As a result, relevant 

Page 104



expenditure budgets will be grossed up to reflect a net nil position to 
allow for additional resources to be brought in as required. 
 

Legal 

The council must determine its fees regime on a cost recovery basis in 
accordance with the Regulations, the Provision of Services Regulations 
2009, as amended post Brexit and Government guidance for the setting 
of fees. 
 
The Policy properly reflects the different considerations required to be 
applied by a responsible local authority in setting its fees for mobile home 
site licensing functions.  
 
The legal basis for the powers referred to in this report are in the 
legislation listed in this report. 

 
Other risks/implications: checklist 

 
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with a 
 below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist officers on 
those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There are no 
significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues marked with an 
x. 
 

risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x 

community safety x  asset management x 

equality and diversity x  climate change x 

sustainability x  ICT x 

health and safety x  data protection x 

 
Processing Personal Data 

 
In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the 
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also required.  
If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection and processing 
of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a new working 
arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed and signed off 
by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance with the Data 
Protection Act 2018.  
 

report author telephone no. email date 

Mandy Seddon 01253 887411 
Mandy.seddon@wyre.gov.

uk 
20.08.2021 

 

List of background papers: 

name of document date where available for inspection 

Page 105



None   

 
List of appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – List of Relevant Protected Sites in Wyre  

Page 106



Wyre Licensed Caravan Sites   -  16 Relevant Protected Sites

Site Maximum Residential Units permitted 

1 Acresfield Garstang By Pass Road Cabus PR3 1PH 43

2 Bentley Green Bentley Green Thornton Cleveleys FY5 5QD 10

3 Burlingham Park A6 Cabus Garstang PR3 1PJ 172

4 Hambleton Country Park Sower Carr Lane Hambleton FY6 9EQ 95

5 Havenlyn Lancaster New Road Cabus PR3 1BF 35

6 Ingledene Park Lawsons Road Thornton Cleveleys FY5 4DD 30

7 Lodge Park Catterall Gates Lane Catterall PR3 1ZJ 41

8 Rowan Water Garstang Road St Michaels PR3 0TD 27

9 Stalmine Country Park Neds Lane Stalmine FY6 0LW 28

10 Stalmine Hall Park Hallgate Lane Stalmine FY6 0LD 53

11 Sunnyside Caravan Park Myerscough Hall Drive Bilsborrow PR3 0SE 35

12 Whitehouse Residential Park Lancaster New Road Cabus PR3 1BG 18

13 Willowgrove Park Sandy Lane Preesall FY6 0RB 56

14 Woodside Country Park Moss House Lane Stalmine FY6 0PL 80

15 Wyresdale Park Kiln Lane Hambleton FY6 9DZ 35

16 Wyre Vale Park A6 Garstang By Pass Garstang PR3 1PH 136

P
age 107



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Confirmation of minutes
	Printed minutes 03062021 1800 Licensing Committee
	Printed minutes 13072021 1800 Licensing Committee

	6 Application for a new Premises License - The Linden Tree Tea Room, 31 Linden Ave, Thornton Cleveleys, FY5 2EZ
	Appendix 1 - 5
	Appendix 6
	App 7 - S.182 guidance

	7 Mobile Homes - Fit and Proper Person Application Fees
	Appendix 1


